From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Debra Bailey <baileyd@signetplanning.com>

11 June 2014 09:54

Ampoma, Nanayaa

Julian Sutton; Cathy Wallace

47 MARCHMONT STREET, LONDON, WCIN 1AP - 2414/3616/PRE

Attachments: Dfficer Delegated Repaort-2741764. pdf

Dear Na

nayaa,

Further to your email of 4 June to my colleague Paula Carney regarding our submission in respect of
the above sit, | write to confirm the details you have requested. Apologies that these were not clear
in our submission. Please note that a comprehensive set of paper plans were submitted to the
Planning Department under separate cover. These should have been received by your office now.

In answer to your questions, | can confirm the following:

| look fo

The change of use relates only to the basement.

The basement benefits from the implementation of planning permission for the restaurant
use. However, our client has only implemented the restaurant use in respect to a small part
of the rear of the basement. As such, the pre-application proposal seeks advice on the
change of use of the vacant basement (Use Class A3) to a single residential property (Use
Class C3).

The restaurant use at ground floor and the basement store room will remain.

There are no changes to the front elevation of the building. However, as stated above, a full
set of plans have been submitted by post.

The reference to the lack of historic features is a reference from the Officer’s Report in
respect of planning application LPA ref: 2010/0847/P dated 29 June 2010. For convenience,
| attach the Officer’s Report. This is therefore the previous view of your Authority when
assessing a change of use of the basement.

rward to hearing from you to organise a meeting with the Conservation Officer on site. If

you should have any further questions, please do not hesitate to contact me or Julian Sutton.

Kind regards

Sent on

behalf of

Cathy Wallace

Senior

Planner

SIGNET PLANNINI

56 Queen Anne Street

London

W1G 8LA

Tel: 0207 317 3110
Fax: 0207 317 3111
www.signetplanning.com

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication contains information which is confidential and may also be privileged. It is for the
exclusive use of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient please note that any distribution, copying or use of this



communication or the information in it is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error please notify us by email
(or by telephone on 01423 857510). You should not copy or use it for any purposes, nor disclose its contents to any other person.

Please be aware that email is not a secure form of communication. Messages sent via this medium may be subject to delays, non-
delivery and unauthorised interference. Although we have scanned this email and any files with this email for viruses, it is your
responsibility to ensure that they are actually virus free.

This message has been scanned for viruses and dangerous
content by Mailscanner-XMO02, and is believed to be clean.
ISP: First 4 IT Ltd (Registered in the UK: 4716196)
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Deleg ated Report Analysis sheet Expiry Date: 30/04/2010
N/A / attached Consultation

07/04/2010

Expiry Date:
Officer Application Number(s)
2010/0847/P
Rob Tulloch 2010/0849/L
Application Address \ Drawing Numbers
47 Marchmont Street
London See decision notice
WCI1N 1AP

PO 3/4 ‘| Area Team Signature | C&UD | Authorised Officer Signature

Proposal(s)

(i) Change of use of basement from office (Class B1) to two bedroom flat (Class C3) and alterations to
roof of rear basement extension.

(ii) Internal alterations and replacement of roof to existing rear extension in connection with the
change of use of basement from office (Class B1) to two bedroom flat (Class C3).

(i) Grant Planning Permission Subject to a Section 106 Legal
SEISIUINERLEURIE) M Agreement
(if) Grant Listed Building Consent

Full Planning Permission
Listed Building Consent

Application Type:






Conditions or Reasons

for Refusal: . .
! Refer to Draft Decision Notice

Informatives:

Consultations

o . No. notified 45 No. of responses 01 No. of objections | 01
Adjoining Occupiers:

No. electronic 00
45 neighbours were consulted and a site notice was erected on 16/03/2010.
One neighbour objected to a potential loss of light, but withdrew their

Summary of consultation [ gbjection when they realised they were commenting on the wrong site.
responses:

No responses received.

CAAC/Local groups*

comments:
*Please Specify

Site Description

The site is Grade Il listed building which forms part of a terrace of 18 houses with later added shops,
dating from ¢.1801-1806. The building stands 4 storeys in height, with a basement, and is constructed
in darkened stock brick. The basement level is currently vacant with a lawful B1 use, the ground floor
is in use as a sandwich bar and the upper floors are residential. The site is located within the
Bloomsbury Conservation Area.

Relevant History
2009/3381/P Change of use of basement from office (Class B1) to two bed flat with single storey
extension to the rear (Class C3). Withdrawn.

M14/10/B/25030 Change of use of basement from use for storage purposes to use as an office and
craft workshop and the construction of basement and ground floor extensions at the rear. Granted
28/10/1977

M14/10/5/HB1728 Alterations and extensions to the rear of ground floor and basement. Granted
28/10/1977

Relevant policies

Replacement Unitary Development Plan 2006
SD6 Amenity for occupiers and neighbours
E2 Retention of existing business uses

H1 New housing

H8 Housing mix

B6 Listed buildings

B7 Conservation areas

T1 Sustainable transport

T8 Car free housing and car capped housing
T9 Impact of parking

Camden Planning Guidance 2006






London Plan Consolidated with Alterations since 2004 (February 2008)
3C.1, 3C.17 and 3C.23

LDF Core Strategy and Development Policies

DP2 Making full use of Camden’s capacity for housing

DP5 Homes of different sizes

DP6 Lifetime homes and wheelchair homes

DP13 Employment sites and premises

DP18 Parking standards and limiting the availability of car parking
DP25 Conserving Camden’s heritage

CS8 Promoting a successful and inclusive Camden economy
CS11 Promoting sustainable and efficient travel
CS14 Promoting high quality places and conserving our heritage

As the draft LDF Core Strategy and Development Policies documents have now been published, they
are material planning considerations. However, as a matter of law, limited weight should be attached
to them at this stage.

Assessment

The proposal is for the conversion of the basement office (B1) into a two bedroom flat (C3), the
replacement of the sloping roof to the existing rear extension with a flat roof, and changes to the
internal layout. The main considerations are the loss of office floorspace, the impact of the alterations
on the listed building and the conservation area, the amenity of neighbours and future occupiers, and
transport.

Land use

Policy E2 (Retention of existing business uses) has a broad presumption against the loss of existing
business uses on sites where there is potential for that use to continue. Where there is no potential for
that particular business use to continue, the site’s suitability for alternative business uses should be
taken into consideration.

The site is located at basement level, and does not have direct road access or large vehicle access,
and floor to ceiling heights are also low. Therefore the site does not possess the flexible design
features suitable for alternative business uses.

Given the relatively small amount of floorspace, 75sqm, and the fact that the building is Grade I
listed, which would make alterations for a flexible use difficult, it is not considered that the site is
suitable for any use other than office (B1).

Policy E2 allows for the loss of office premises, as an exception to the general rule, in areas where
there is a surplus of office accommodation with a preference for a change of use to residential and/or
community uses. It has been acknowledged that this area does have a surplus of office
accommodation given the large number of recent developments for purpose built, modern office
accommodation.

Therefore the proposal for a change of use from office to a permanent residential use is in accordance
with the requirements of policy E2.

In terms of the provision of new housing, policy H1 (New housing) seeks the fullest use of underused
sites and buildings for housing. This proposal would provide a new residential unit and as such
complies with policy H1.

Impact on host building and the conservation area

External works






It is proposed to replace the existing sloped, glazed roof to the extension. A flat roof is to be
introduced with a timber roof lantern. This will have little overall visual impact on the extension which
will remain modest in size and appearance

Internal works

The application concerns changes to the historic floor plan to create a two bedroom flat. Few historic
or architectural features survive and the internal character of the space has been so altered that there
is little of special interest remaining. An extension was granted consent in 1976/77 and most of the
original rear wall of the building has been opened up to access this. The ground to basement
staircase has been removed and toilet accommodation inserted in its place. The spine wall and
partition between the front room and hallway removed to create an open plan layout. The proposed
works reintroduce a cellular room arrangement and some sense of the former spatial quality of the
building.

As such, the proposed works are considered to enhance the listed building and preserve the
character and appearance of the conservation area.

Amenity for occupiers and neighbours

The size of the flat, 75 square metres, complies with the floorspace requirements of a 4 person
dwelling, with the bedrooms meeting the minimum sizes recommended by the Council’s planning
guidance. The flat would also provide approximately 21 square metres of amenity space at the rear.

The lightwell at the front will serve the kitchen/diner. To ensure that adequate natural light is provided
to habitable rooms, walls or structures should not obstruct the windows by being within 3m of them. If
the 3m rule is not achievable, as is the case with most basements, the glazed area should not be les
than 10% of the floor area of the room. The glazing which is allowable in this calculation is that which
is above the points on the window from which a line can be drawn upwards at a vertical angle of 30
degrees with the horizontal to pass the top of the obstruction. Although the glazed area measures
approximately 2.5 square metres (20% of the floorspace of the room), only approximately 6.5% is
above the 30 degree line. The rear bedrooms face the garden and receive adequate light and on
balance the proposal is considered to comply with the Council’s residential development standards.

The applicant has submitted limited lifetime homes information, only addressing points 6, 7, 10, 12, 14
and 15. It is acknowledged in the Council’s planning guidance that conversions cannot always meet
all of the Lifetime Homes requirements, but should try to meet, or justify a proposal’s inability to meet,
points 1, 3 and 5 as well. As points these points do not apply in this particular case, it is considered
that the proposal has demonstrated why meeting all of the Lifetime Homes criteria is not possible in
this particular case.

The only external alteration would be the replacement of the sloping roof to the existing rear extension
with a flat roof. It is considered that the proposed works will not adversely impact on the amenity of
the adjacent properties with regard to access to sunlight, daylight, or outlook and thus is considered to
be consistent with Policy SD6 (Amenity for occupiers and neighbours) of the development plan.

Transport

The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level of (PTAL) of 6b (excellent), it is within a Controlled
Parking Zone (CPZ), and is within the Clear Zone Region for which the whole area is considered to
suffer from parking stress. Kings Cross (CA-D) Controlled Parking Zone operates Mon-Fri 08:30-
18:30 and Sat 08:30-13:30, and 117 parking permits have been issued for every 100 estimated
parking bays within the zone. This means that this CPZ is highly stressed.

A new residential unit will increase demand for on-street parking in the Controlled Parking Zone. This
is considered unacceptable in CPZ’s that are highly stressed where overnight demand exceeds 90%.






Therefore the proposal should be made car-free in accordance with policies T8 (Car free housing and
car capped housing) and T9 (Impact of parking). This will be secured by legal agreement.

The Council would normally require space for one bicycle to be stored securely for a flat of this size;
however due to the location of the flat at basement level the need to formally agree such
arrangements can be waived in this instance.

Recommendation

Grant Planning Permission Subject to a Section 106 Agreement
Grant Listed Building Consent

Disclaimer
This is an internet copy for information purposes. If you
require a copy of the signed original please contact the Culture
and Environment Department on (020) 7974 5613
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